
 
 
Committee: 
 

BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL 

Date: 
 

TUESDAY, 31ST MARCH 2009 

Venue: 
 

LANCASTER TOWN HALL 

Time: 4.30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  
 
2. Declaration of Interests  
 
3. Minutes  
 
 Minutes of the Meeting held on 24th February 2009 (previously circulated)   
  
4. Items of Urgent Business authorised by the Chairman  
 
5. 3rd Quarter Corporate Monitoring Reports (Pages 1 - 24) 
 
 Report of Cabinet Member with Responsibility for Performance Management Efficiency  
  
6. BVPI Comparison - Exeter Benchmarking Group (Pages 25 - 53) 
 
 Report of Corporate Performance Manager  
  
7. Data Quality Audit 2007/08 (Pages 54 - 65) 
 
 Report of Corporate Performance Manager  
  
8. Use of Resources Assessment 2008 (Pages 66 - 67) 
 
 Report of Corporate Director (Finance & Performance)  
  
9. Work Programme Report (Pages 68 - 70) 
 
 Report of Head of Democratic Services  
  
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Roger Sherlock (Chairman), John Whitelegg (Vice-Chairman), Tina Clifford, 

Jean Dent, Keran Farrow, Sarah Fishwick, Mike Greenall, Ian McCulloch and 
Keith Sowden 

Councillors are reminded that as Members of Overview and Scrutiny 
they may not be subjected to the Party Whip, which is prohibited under 

the Lancaster City Council Constitution.



 

(ii) Substitute Membership 
 

 Councillors Chris Coates, Roger Dennison, Rebekah Gerrard, Emily Heath, 
Karen Leytham, Roger Plumb, Peter Robinson, Sylvia Rogerson and Paul Woodruff 
 

(iii) Queries regarding this Agenda 
 

 Please contact Jane Glenton, Democratic Services – telephone (01524) 582068 or email 
JGlenton@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iv) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies 
 

 Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

MARK CULLINAN, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on Monday, 23rd March 2009 

 



Agenda Item 5Page 1



Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



 

 
    
 

Budget & Performance Panel  
 
 

BVPI Comparison  
Exeter Benchmarking Group  

 
31st March 2009 

 
Report of Corporate Performance Manager 

  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To provide Members with a comparison of the Council’s performance against 
statutory Performance Indicators in relation to a number of similar local authorities. 
 
 
This report is public  
 

 
 
1. RECOMMENDATIONS  
  

That Members should note this report and may also wish to keep this information to 
hand for future reference when considering council’s performance.  

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 

Within the terms of the Local Government Act 1999 the Council has a duty to seek to 
continuously improve its services to the local community and to manage its 
performance to support that improvement. 
 
Informed comparison is a key element of performance management.  Authorities are 
required to set targets against all national and local indicators that allow for 
comparison nationally, performance indicators are a good starting point for 
comparison work, it is always useful to see what other similar authorities manage to 
achieve with similar resources. 

 
Lancaster City Council is a member of the Exeter Benchmarking Group, (sometimes 
called the Historic Towns Group).  This is an established network of District 
authorities who have a similar profile based on, size, demographic and budget. Each 
year a detailed comparison report of authority performance based on statutory 
BVPI’s is produced.  This report is used to help other authorities seek out best 
practice in similar organisations. 

 

Agenda Item 6Page 25



Members may find this comparison interesting, however as it is based on the most 
recently available audited performance information for the financial year 2007/08 it is 
a year out of date.   
 
The comparison document is attached at Appendix A. 

 
3. THE FUTURE 

 
 Members should not that this is the last time they will be presented with this now 
 familiar comparison report.  All BVPI’s were deleted with effect from 1st April 2008.  
 They were replaced with a set of National Indicators which focus upon the quality of 
 life experienced by residents, rather than measuring the quality of service offered by 
 councils. A relatively small number of these new indicators are required from district 
 councils, the remainder will be collected the Lancashire Partnership (the County 
 LSP) on a county-wide footprint.   
 
 The Audit Commission does not intend to produce national comparative quartiles for 
 the new National Indicators.  
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 
SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS  
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The Council has a duty to continuously improve within the terms of the Local Government 
Act 1999 (the duty of Best Value). Legal Services have been consulted and have no further 
comments. 
 
MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: Liz Stokes 
Telephone: 582150 
E-mail:  
Lstokes@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



 

1 

    
 

Budget & Performance Panel  
 
 

Data Quality Audit 2007/08 
31st March 2009 

 
Report of Corporate Performance Manager 

  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To inform Members of the outcome of the annual Data Quality Audit 
 

 
This report is public  
 

 
 
 

1. Background 
 
1.1 In July and August 2008, the council’s auditors KPMG undertook a statutory audit of 
 the arrangements the  Council has in place to ensure the quality of the data 
 upon which it relies to make its decisions. 
 
1.2 The audit is conducted in 3 parts: 
  

 Stage 1: Review of the management arrangements for data quality using the Data 
Quality KLOE (Key Lines of Enquiry) 

 
 Stage 2: Issues arising from analytical review of 2007/08 performance data (BVPIs 

and key non BVPIs eg. HIP returns).  This process informs:- 
 
 Stage 3:  In-depth review/audit of selected sample performance indicators 

 
 
2. Outcome of the Audit 
  
2.1 For the financial year 2007/08, Lancaster City Council consolidated its position as an 

authority which is ‘Performing Well’ for data quality management and is 
‘consistently above minimum requirements’.   

 
2.2 The audit report is attached at Appendix 1 to this report.   
 
 
3. Auditor Recommendations 
 
3.1 KPMG made a total of 8 original recommendations for improvement in the coming 

year.   However Members will see if they refer to page 7 of the attached report that 

Agenda Item 7 Page 54



2 

this has now has been reduced to 7 in the light of officer comment upon the draft 
report.   

 
3.2 A recommendation which asked the council to ‘automate’ the transfer of performance 

data from existing systems to the Escendency system was considered unrealistic in 
the light of current budgetary pressures.  KPMG have agreed to remove the 
recommendation.  Having reviewed the KLOE, it is considered that failure to do this 
should have no significant negative impact upon our prospects for improvement in 
future years. 

 
4. The Future 
 
4.1 A target to achieve level 4 (Well above minimum requirements - performing 
 strongly) in the forthcoming 2008/09 audit has been set. The main  requirement of the 
 KLOE which we have not previously satisfied is the  effective management of Data 
 Quality within the Council’s key partnerships.  It is not possible to achieve the 
 highest level without the full co-operation of partners.   
 
4.2 Work undertaken within the Local Strategic Partnership supporting the Performance 

Management Framework for the delivery of the Sustainable Community Strategy, 
means that for the first time there is a realistic possibility for us to improve our Data 
Quality score to the maximum possible awarded.  

  
4.3 However, as KPMG have very recently made us aware that there may well be 

changes to the audit methodology for the 2008/09 data, the target of achieving level 
4 should be reconsidered at a later date to ensure that the target remains realistic. 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS  
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The Council has a duty to continuously improve within the terms of the Local Government 
Act 1999 (the duty of Best Value). Legal Services have been consulted and have no further 
comments. 
 
MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: Liz Stokes 
Telephone: 582150 
E-mail:  
Lstokes@lancaster.gov.uk 
 

 

Page 55



GOVERNMENT

Data Quality 

Review

2007-08

Lancaster City Council

23 February 2009

AUDIT

Page 56



Content

1© 2008 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member 
firms affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. 

Page

Executive summary 2

Management Arrangements 4

Performance Indicator Spot Checks 6

Appendices 7

1. Recommendations

2. Prior Year recommendations

The contacts at KPMG

in connection with this 

report are:

Kevin Wharton

Director

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel:  0161 246 4633

kevin.wharton@kpmg.co.uk

Jillian Burrows

Senior Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 016 246 4705

jillian.burrows@kpmg.co.uk

Carl Teigh

Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel:  0113 231 3354

carl.teigh@kpmg.co.uk

Brad Hermes

Assistant Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 016 246 4314

brad.hermes@kpmg.co.uk

This report is addressed to the Council and has been prepared for the sole use of the Council.  We

take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual capacities, or to third parties.

The Audit Commission has issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and

Audited Bodies.  This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what is

expected from the audited body.  We draw your attention to this document.

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in

place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance with the law

and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used

economically, efficiently and effectively.

If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you

should contact Kevin Wharton who is the engagement lead to the Council, telephone 0161 246 4633

email kevin.wharton@kpmg.co.uk who will try to resolve your complaint.  If you are dissatisfied with

your response please contact Trevor Rees on 0161 246 4063, email trevor.rees@kpmg.co.uk, who is

the national contact partner for all of KPMG’s work with the Audit Commission. After this, if you still

dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled you can access the Audit Commission’s

complaints procedure.  Put your complaint in writing to the Complaints Team, Nicholson House, Lime

Kiln Close, Stoke Gifford, Bristol, BS34 8SU or by e mail to: complaints@audit-commission.gov.uk.

Their telephone number is 0844 798 3131, textphone (minicom) 020 7630 0421.

Page 57



Executive Summary

2© 2008 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member 
firms affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. 

The Audit Commission has developed a three-stage approach for assessing data quality, the first stage being a

review of management arrangements for data quality. This review determines whether the Council has in place

proper corporate management arrangements for data quality, and whether they are being applied in practice.  This

is the third year in which we have undertaken work on data quality.

The findings support our conclusion on your arrangements to secure value for money in relation to the specific

criterion on data quality. This requires the Council to have ‘a track record of using high quality information on costs

to actively manage performance, improve value for money and target resources’. This conclusion will be issued

with the 2007/08 audit opinion on your accounts.

Stage One

The work on management arrangements focuses on corporate data quality arrangements for your performance

information. Our work will help drive improvement in the quality of performance information, leading to greater

confidence in the supporting data on which performance assessments are based.  The review is structured around

five themes:

Governance and leadership;

Policies and procedures;

Systems and processes;

People and skills; and

Data use and reporting.

These themes break down into thirteen Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOEs).  We have assessed your arrangements

against each KLOE and have scored you against each theme as defined below:

We have assessed your overall performance as performing well.  You have performed well in respect of your

arrangements in each of the five themes.

We have provided our key findings in Section One and have raised seven recommendations, summarised in

Appendix 1.  We report on the implementation of prior year recommendations in Appendix 2

Level Description

Inadequate Below minimum requirements - inadequate performance

Adequate Only at minimum requirements - adequate performance

Performing well Consistently above minimum requirements - performing well

Performing strongly Well above minimum requirements - performing strongly

Page 58



Executive Summary

3© 2008 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member 
firms affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. 

Stage Two

During Stage Two of the process, we followed up issues arising from the analytical review of 2007/08 BVPI and 

non-BVPI data, used in the Comprehensive Performance Assessment carried out by the Audit Commission. This

analytical review informed our selection of a sample for testing at Stage Three.

Stage Three

When deciding how many and which PIs to review at Stage Three, in addition to those identified for review by the

Audit Commission, we used the results from stage one and our cumulative audit knowledge and experience to

determine the total number of PIs for review.  As a result of this, we have identified 1 BVPI to review.  In addition,

it is mandatory to review two housing benefits PIs (BV78a and BV78b) at Stage Three. The following were

therefore reviewed:

BV 184 (a) – Proportion of non-decent home;

BV 78 (a) - Speed  of processing new claim to HB/CTB; and

BV 78 (b) – Speed of processing change of circumstances to HB/CTB.

The results of these spot check reviews indicate that the data quality underpinning your PIs is good.

The results of our data quality spot checks are summarised in Section Two.

Best Value Performance Plan Report

In prior years we audited your Best Value Performance Plan in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999

and the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice. From this year there is no requirement for this to be audited.

Page 59



Section one

Management Arrangements

4© 2008 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member 
firms affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. 

Theme Performance Key issues

Governance & 

Leadership
Performing well

Performing well

Systems & 

Processes
Performing well

Improvements in this area include:

The council has introduced business continuity arrangements during the

year to provide protection for records and performance data which are

vital to the continued effective functioning of the Council.

A formal Information Sharing protocol has been introduced during the

year which specifies the responsibilities of partners to provide data

which is ‘fit for purpose’ to the Council.

Areas for further development:

• The Council should put systematic arrangements in place annually to

ensure that data supplied by third parties is fit for purpose, for example,

via direct input into the Escendency System or through data quality

assessments carried out by Internal Audit.

• Any issues identified at partner bodies is communicated to them on an

ad hoc basis. The Council should ensure the partner bodies are fully

involved in this process, for instance being included on internal data 

quality communications.

Improvements in this area include:

The Council has ensured that the Data Quality Policy is embedded

within the organisation.

Areas for further development:

• The Council provided one-on-one training with staff during the year, 

however the Council should demonstrate an example of good practice

in securing data quality training for all relevant staff.

Policies & 

Procedures

Improvements in this area include:

The Council has reviewed and updated the Data Quality Strategy during

the year.   The updated Data Quality Strategy now covers data quality

requirements on partnership working.

Areas for further development:

• The Council has developed a network of information custodians,

however the Council need to demonstrate the impact that information

custodians have on data quality.  For example, by creating a log to

identify all issues and actions by the information custodians to improve

data quality.

• The Council should begin to pursue and rectify non-compliance with

policies and procedures by partnerships.

We have assessed your overall level of performance as performing well. You have performed well in respect

of your arrangements over each of the five themes detailed below.

The table sets out key drivers behind each theme, and details areas where you are currently meeting requirements

and areas where further development is required.

Page 60



Section one

Management Arrangements (continued)

5© 2008 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member 
firms affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. 

Theme Performance Key issues

Performing well

Performing well

People & Skills

Improvements in this area include:

During the year, the Council has continued updating the Data Quality

Strategy to ensure all relevant staff are clear on their roles and

responsibilities around data quality.

Areas for further development:

• The Council should develop a formal training programme on data quality

issues tailored to the varying needs of all relevant staff and ensure it is

adapted to changing needs.

Data Use

Improvements in this area include:

During the year, the members and senior management have fully

utilised the Escendency system.  This is evidenced by quarterly

performance reports and annual reports for 2007/08.

Areas for further development:

• The Council should develop a formal documented process for checking

externally reported data/performance indicators, both departmentally

and corporately, to assure the quality of the data.

Page 61



Section two

Performance Indicator Spot Checks

6© 2008 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member 
firms affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. 

Our Stage Two and Three analytical review work identified that the PI values reviewed fell within expected ranges.

We carried out spot checks on three of your PIs. As a result of our audit work, one PI was amended and no 

reservations issued on two PIs as summarised in the table below.

PI Description Value stated Conclusion

BV 184 (a) Proportion of non-decent homes 1% Amended to 0%

BV 78 (a) Speed of processing new claim to HB/ CTB 19.2 days Fairly stated

BV 78 (b)
Speed of processing changes of circumstances to 
HB/ CTB

7.4 days Fairly stated

Page 62



Appendix 1

Recommendations

7© 2008 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member 
firms affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. 

This appendix summarises the recommendations we have identified relating to your data quality management

arrangements. We have given each a risk rating (as explained below) and agreed with management what action

you will need to take.

We will follow up these recommendations as part of our 2008-09 audit.

No. Priority Recommendation Management response
Officer and due

date

(two)

(two)

3
(two)

Policies and procedures

The Council should begin to pursue and rectify non-
compliance with policies and procedures by partnerships.

DQ compliance within 
partnerships will be checked
by LSP PMF Team

Corporate
Performance
Manager - ongoing

5
(three)

Systems and processes

Any issues identified at partner bodies is communicated to
them on an ad hoc basis. The Council should ensure the
partner bodies are fully involved in this process, for instance
being included on internal data quality communications.

Agreed Corporate
Performance
Manager - ongoing

7
(two)

Data Use

The Council should develop a formal documented process for 
checking externally reported data/performance indicators, both 
departmentally and corporately, to assure the quality of the
data.

Agreed Corporate
Performance
Manger

April 2009

(two)

Agreed

(two)

Corporate
Performance
Manager

April 2009

2

Policies and procedures

The Council has developed a network of information
custodians, however the Council need to demonstrate the
impact that information custodians have on data quality. For
example, by creating a log to identify all issues and actions by
the information custodians to improve data quality.

Agreed Corporate
Performance
Manger

April 2009

6

People and skills

The Council should develop a formal training programme on
data quality issues tailored to the varying needs of all relevant
staff and ensure it is adapted to changing needs.

Agreed Corporate
Performance
Manager –
programme in 
place April 2009

4

Systems and processes

The Council should put systematic arrangements in place
annually to ensure that data supplied by third parties is fit for
purpose, for example, via direct input into the Escendency 
System or through data quality assessments carried out by 
Internal Audit.

Agreed - Corporate Strategy 
will check.

It is inconsistent with the 
role of Internal Audit as 
impartial assessors  for 
them to play an integral part 
in the process – however,
potential for review of 
systems on an ad hoc basis 
where appropriate

Corporate
Performance
Manager – ongoing
throughout year

1

Governance and leadership

The Council provided one-on-one training with staff during the
year, however the Council should demonstrate an example of 
good practice in securing data quality training for all relevant
staff.

Priority rating for recommendations

Priority one: Addressing these issues
is essential to assist in moving you
towards an improved rating.

Priority two: Addressing these issues 
is desirable to assist in moving you 
towards an improved rating.

Priority three: Addressing these
issues will assist in moving you 
towards an improved rating.

Page 63



Appendix 2

Prior Year Recommendations

8© 2008 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member 
firms affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. 

This appendix summarises the progress made to implement the recommendations that were identified in previous
Data Quality reports by the Audit Commission. We have given each of our observations a risk rating (as explained
in Appendix 1). In summary:

Number of recommendations that were: 
Year

Included in original report Implemented in year or superseded Remain outstanding (re-iterated below)

2006-07 6 4 2

Total 6 4 2

Fully implemented

A formal Information

Sharing Protocol has 

been introduced

during the year.

Information Management

Group and Information

Custodians

June 2008

Agreed.  Complete at 

strategy level covered by 

Information Sharing 

protocol.  In early 08 

there will be a significant

review of what the 

council measures to take 

into account the NI set 

and the emerging LAA.

Requirements at a 

detailed operation level

can only be fully 

specified when we are 

clear what we will 

measure

Systems and processes

Specify quality

requirements for all data 

used by the Council which

is shared with external

partners, or which is 

provided by a third-party 

organisation.

(two)

4

Not implemented

This is still ongoing

process.  See 

Recommendation

two.

Corporate Performance

Manager

Ongoing

Examples sought 

through Information

Custodian Group

Policies

Demonstrate the impact 

that information custodians

have on data quality

(two)

2

Fully implemented

Business Continuity

Plans have been in 

place during the year. 

Fully implemented

The  Data Quality

Strategy has been 

updated during the 

year and is embedded

within the 

organisation.

Information Management

Group

March 2008

Business Continuity

plans have been in place 

for all Council Services

since March 2007.  They 

were tested at table-top

exercise in September

2007 and have recently

been reviewed and 

revised based on

learning from that

exercise and some 

recent plan activations.

Systems and processes

Accelerate the 

development of Business 

Continuity Plans.

(three)

3

Information Management

Group

April 2008

Refresh DQ Strategy to 

ensure good fit with 

latest AC guidance and 

then re-launch through

Information Custodian 

Group (draft report

February 2008)

Governance and 

Leadership

Ensure that the Council’s

Data Quality Policy is 

embedded within the 

organisation

(three)

1

Status at November 2008Management response Officer and due date Issue and recommendationRiskNo.

Page 64



Appendix 2

Prior Year Recommendations (continued)

9© 2008 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership, is a subsidiary of KPMG Europe LLP and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member 
firms affiliated with KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. All rights reserved. This document is confidential and its circulation and use are restricted. 

KPMG and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International, a Swiss cooperative. 

No. Risk Issue and recommendation Management response
Officer and due

date
Status at November 2008

5

(one)

People and Skills

Ensure that data quality 

training is periodically

evaluated and adapted to 

changing needs.

Second session of DQ 

training planned for spring 

2008 to train the small 

number of Information

Custodians who missed 

the initial training.  Will be 

scheduled to take place 

after business plans 

completed.

Corporate

Performance

Manager

April 2008

Partially implemented

Training has been

provided during the year.

However, improvement

to training can be 

strengthened by

developing training

programme.  See 

Recommendation seven.

6

(two)

Data use and reporting

Monitor usage of the 

Escendency system to 

ensure that members and 

senior management are 

fully utilising the system.

There are a detailed project

plan for the further

development of the 

system.  At all stages, 

central QA procedures will

ensure that the

functionality of the system 

is fully utilised.

Corporate

Performance

Manager

Ongoing

Fully implemented

During the year, the 

members and senior

management have fully 

utilised the Escendency

system.  This is 

evidenced by quarterly

performance reports and 

annual reports for

2007/08.

Page 65



Agenda Item 8 Page 66



Page 67



 

 

    
 
    
 

BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL  
 
  

Work Programme Report 
31st March 2009 

 
Report of Head of Democratic Services 

  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To provide Members with an update of the Panel’s Work Programme. 
 
 
This report is public 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That consideration be given to appointing a Panel Member to the District Wide 

Tenants Liaison Group whilst the Liaison Group considers the implications of 
revisions to council housing rents. 

 
(2) That the Panel agree to the Budget and Performance Panel section of the 

Annual Scrutiny Report 2008-09. 
 
 
1. Referral from Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Council Housing Rents 
 

At the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting on 11th March 2009, Councillor 
Kerr discussed issues within his portfolio with the Committee.  Among the issues 
raised were the possible budgetary implications in view of the recent announcement 
from the government minister of a 3.1% increase in council rents as opposed to the 
council’s agreed 5% increase.  Councillor Kerr advised the committee that this would 
be raised in the District Wide Tenants Liaison Group and invited the Committee to 
send a representative to these discussions.  As this was a budgetary issue the 
Committee agreed that this should be referred to Budget and Performance Panel for 
consideration.   
 
The Corporate Director (Community Services) will be reporting to a future Cabinet on 
this issue as the announcement was too late to be incorporated into this year’s 
budget process. 
 
The Panel are requested to consider appointing a representative to attend the District 
Wide Tenants Liaison Group whilst the Liaison Group discusses consideration of this 
issue. 

Agenda Item 9 Page 68



2. Agreement of Budget and Performance Panel section of the Annual Scrutiny 
Report 2008-09 

 
 A copy of the draft Budget and Performance Panel section of the Annual Scrutiny 

Report 2008-09 has been circulated to Panel Members electronically with the request 
that any revisions/comments be forwarded to Democratic Services prior to the 
meeting in order that any revisions can be incorporated into the version which will be 
submitted to the Panel at the meeting.  This will be considered by Full Council on 8th 
April 2009. 

 
 The Panel are requested to agree to the Budget and Performance Panel section of 

the report. 
 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 

Contact Officer: Liz Bateson 
Telephone: 01524 582047 
E-mail: ebateson@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 69



B
U

D
G

ET
 A

N
D

 P
ER

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
PA

N
EL

 
W

O
R

K
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

  
M

at
te

r f
or

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

r 
R

es
po

ns
ib

le
 

 

M
ee

tin
g 

da
te

 

 
 

 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

P
ilo

t–
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
H

.C
S

 
TB

C
 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
P

ilo
t –

 M
us

eu
m

s 
S

er
vi

ce
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

H
.C

ul
t.S

 
TB

C
 

  
R

eq
ue

st
s 

fo
r C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r a
tte

nd
an

ce
 

 
P

R
T 

R
ep

or
ts

 3
rd  q

ua
rte

r 
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r w
ith

 re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 
31

.3
.0

9 

 
B

rie
fin

g 
N

ot
es

 re
qu

es
te

d 
 

D
at

e 
re

qu
es

te
d 

To
pi

c 
O

ffi
ce

r r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 
P

ro
gr

es
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 70


	Agenda
	5 3rd Quarter Corporate Monitoring Reports
	6 BVPI Comparison - Exeter Benchmarking Group
	Scan

	7 Data Quality Audit 2007/08
	0708 Lancaster City Council Data Quality - FINAL.pdf

	8 Use of Resources Assessment 2008
	9 Work Programme Report
	BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL updated work programme


